EXHIBIT D

State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #

PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial

NRHP Status Code

Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date
Page 1 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
P1. Other ldentifier:
*P2. Location: [ Not for Publication Unrestricted *a. County: Los Angeles
and (P2b and P2c or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.)
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad: Date: T ; R ¥ Ya of Y of Sec ;s M.D. B.M.
c. Address: 260 E San Antonio Drive City: Long Beach Zip: 95369
d. UTM: Zone: : mE/ mN (G.P.S.)

e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate) Elevation:
*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condi!ion, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries)

This two-story, wood framed, single-family house was built in the Colonial Revival style in 1919. The house was moved to its
current location in 1926, The current site is raised above the street level with steps leading up the slope to the front porch and
entry. The house sits on a raised brick foundation that has been reinforced with concrete. The house is irregular in form, with a
bay window and single story projection on the west (side) facade, additions on the rear (south) facade, and a semi-circular
projection on the east (side) facade. The side-gabled roof is clad in asphalt shingles and the exterior is clad in horizontal wood
siding. Four two-story high classical columns support the shed style front porch roof. . The window and door fenestration on the
front elevation is symmetrical with the front door centered on the first floor of the facade. The front door is flanked by leaded side
light windows and topped by a leaded fan light window and a pediment. The front entry is flanked on each side by a set of three
windows; the center window is a six paned fixed over a large single paned casement window and flanked by two three-paned
fixed window over a small casement window. The second floor has three pairs of eight-over-one wood sash windows directly
over the three window/door groupings on the first floor. The windows are all wood sashes and surrounded by a wide wood
frame. (continued on page 3)

*P3b. Resource Attributes: HP2 single family home
*P4. Resources Present: HBuilding  EStructure OObject OSite ODistrict CElement of District COOther (Isolates, etc.)

P5b. Description of Photo:

P5a. Pho Drawi
a to or Drawing Primary (north) facade

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and
Sources:
XHistoric OPrehistoric OBoth
1919; 11/4/15 DPR form (prepared
by Maureen Neeley of HouStories)

*P7. Owner and Address:
Jay & Nancy Lentzner
260 E San Antonio Drive
Long Beach, CA 90807
*P8. Recorded by: (Name,
affiliation, and address)
Amber Grady
ESA
2600 Capitol Ave, Ste 200,
Sacramento, CA95816
*P9. Date Recorded: 2/16/2016

*P10. Survey Type: (Describe)
Intensive

*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.") none

*Attachments: [ONONE [Location Map [OSketch Map ®Continuation Sheet ®Building, Structure, and Object Record
OArchaeological Record [District Record OLinear Feature Record [OMilling Station Record [ORock Art Record
OArtifact Record OPhotograph Record O Other (List):

DPR 523A (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#
BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD

Page 2 of 7 *NRHP Status Code

*Resource Name or # Kuglis/Jennings House

B1. Historic Name: Kuglis House
B2. Common Name: none
B3. Original Use: single family house B4. Present Use: single family house
*B5. Architectural Style: Colonial Revival
*B6. Construction History:
Built in 1919; moved in 1926; porch replaced in 1926; detached garage built c. 1926; foundation repairs, rear addition, and
pool installed in 1961; den enlarged in 1988.

*B7. Moved? ONo ®Yes [Unknown Date: c1926 Original Location: 3801 Temple (now Pine Avenue)
*B8. Related Features: Detached garage, pool.

B9a. Architect: unknown b. Builder: unknown
*B10. Significance: Theme: Early 20t Century Residential Architecture Area: Los Cerritos Neighborhood of Long Beach

Period of Significance: 1919-1926 Property Type: Residential Applicable Criteria: Local Criteria applied
(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope. Also address integrity.)

The following history was taken primarily from the Long Beach Citywide Historic Resources Inventory Update Final Report prepared
by ICF in 2009 for the City of Long Beach, the City of Long Beach Historic Context Statement, and the Kuglis/Jennings Home DPR
prepared by Maureen Neeley of HouStories in 2015.

History of Los Cerritos Neighborhood

The subject property is part of what was Rancho Los Cerritos. In 1784, approximately 300,000 acres of land was granted to Spanish
soldier, Manuel Nieto. In 1790, the acreage was reduced to 167,000 due to a dispute with Mission San Gabriel. After Nieto’s death,
his children divided the property into five ranchos; including Rancho Los Alamitos and Rancho Los Cerritos now in present day
Long Beach. In 1843, John Temple bought 27,000 acres of the Rancho and established a cattle ranch. Temple sold portions over
time and eventually he sold the majority of the land, including the now historic home Rancho Los Cerritos, to the firm Flint, Bixby
& Co. who converted it into a sheep farm. After decades in use as cattle and sheep grazing land, the land was subdivided and the
Los Cerritos neighborhood was established in 1906; streets were laid out and lots began to sell. There was a building boom in
Long Beach in the 1920s primarily associated with two events: the US Navy stationing the Pacific Fleet in Long Beach, and the
discovery of oil. Both of these events resulted in a rapid increase in population, which resulted in an increased need for housing.
In those areas where oil was discovered there was a negative impact to the housing market as oil derricks popped up in the
middle of residential neighborhoods. The discovery of oil in the Los Cerritos neighborhood necessitated the move of the subject
property as well as a number of others, which have not been fully identified. After the Jennings family moved the house to its
current location at 260 E San Antonio Drive, they built an oil derrick on the vacant lot at 3801 Temple (now Pine Avenue) and
struck oil.

(continued on page 4)
B11. Additional Resource Attributes: none

*B12. References:
B13. Remarks:
*B14. Evaluator: Amber Grady, ESA

2600 Capitol Ave, Ste 200
Sacramento, CA 95816

(This space reserved for official comments.)

DPR 523B (1/95) *Required information




State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 3 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
*Recorded by Amber Grady *Date 2/16/2016 [XIContinuation OUpdate

*P3a. Description: (continued from page 1)

A detached garage is at the rear of the lot. It is a single story building with a loft/attic. The garage is also clad in the same
horizontal wood siding and has eight-over-one wood sash windows that match the house. The roof is side-gabled and clad in
asphalt shingles. There is evidence that the garage was enlarged; based on the materials it was most likely not long after its
original construction. Car access is from the alley via a replacement, metal roll-up door on the south facade. The north fagade
includes a pedestrian door and a pair of eight-over-one, wood sash windows. The west facade includes two four-over-one, wood
sash windows and a vent.

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONT'NUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 4 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
*Recorded by Amber Grady *Date 2/16/2016 XContinuation OUpdate

*B10. Significance: (Continued from page 2)

The subject property is in the Los Cerritos neighborhood of Long Beach, currently defined as the area bound by the Los Angeles
River and Del Mar Avenue on the west, W 47t Street on the north, Long Beach Blvd on the east, and the 405 freeway on the
south. The Los Cerritos neighborhood is a portion of Bixby Knolls, which is currently defined as the area bound by the 405
Freeway to the south, Del Amo Blvd to the north, the Los Angeles River and the Lakewood city boundary to the west of Atlantic
Avenue, and Bixby Road to the south.

Significance

City of Long Beach Criteria

Volume I Title 2: Chapter 2.63, 2.63.050 Criteria for designation of landmarks and landmark districts

Landmarks. A cultural resource qualifies for designation as a Landmark if it retains integrity and manifests one (1) or more of
the following criteria:

A. It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of the City’s history; or

B. It is associated with the lives of persons significant in the City's past; or

C. It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of construction, or it represents the work of a master or
it possesses high artistic values; or

D. It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

The following provides justification for the property’s eligibility as a City Landmark under Criteria A (Events) and C
(Architecture). The house was originally constructed in 1919 at 3801 Temple (now Pine Avenue, just a few blocks) from its
current location at 260 E San Antonio Drive. Generally moving a building or structure diminishes the likelihood that it will be
determined a historical resource. In this case, the moving of the house is part of the reason for its significance. It is evidence of a
development pattern in the neighborhood that was caused by the discovery of oil. As the oil industry grew all over Long Beach,
oil derricks began popping up everywhere, including residential neighborhoods. The house was moved in 1926 to the San
Antonio Drive location due to safety concerns with the oil derricks, as well as concern of possible flooding. The owner of the
house at the time, the Jennings family, then built an oil derrick on their now vacant lot at 3801 Temple. The property at 260 E San
Antonio Drive is significant under City Landmark Criterion A (Events) as an embodiment of this pattern of development that
was a direct result of the establishment of the oil industry in Long Beach, which is recognized as a major event in the history of
Long Beach.

While no architect has been attributed to the building it is an excellent example of the Colonial Revival style, and is
recommended eligible as a City Landmark under Criteria C (Architecture).

Overall the building has a high degree of integrity. When the home was moved in 1926 the porch was replaced. Historic photos
taken prior to 1926 show a small, single-story porch covering only the front entry. As described above, the porch is now the full
width and height of the facade and four classical columns support the shed roof. As the new porch was added so long ago it is
recommended that this element be considered a character defining feature as it has been part of the house for the majority of its
existence and was done in the same architectural style as the house. While other additions are present, the front portch addition
is the only one that has altered the primary facade and is readily visible from the public right-of-way. Additions to the rear of
the building have not had a significant visual impact overall. The majority of the original windows, exterior siding, and
window /door fenestration remain intact. The basic form and interior floorplan of the building is intact as well as many interior
finishes (e.g., decorative plaster in entry, decorative medallions at ceiling light fixtures, and door hardware).

While a full evaluation for the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) was not done at this time local criteria A and
C align with Criteria 1 (Events) and 3 (Architecture) of the CRHR for which it is also potentially eligible.

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 5 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
*Recorded by Amber Grady *Date 2/16/2016 XIContinuation OUpdate

Primary (north) facade, looking south

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONT!NUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 6 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
*Recorded by Amber Grady *Date 2/16/2016 XIContinuation OUpdate

Rear (south) facade, looking north

Rear (south) facade, 100king north

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 7 of 7 *Resource Name or #: Kuglis/Jennings House
*Recorded by Amber Grady *Date 2/16/2016 XIContinuation OUpdate

Detached garage, north facade, looking south

Detached garage, west fagade, looking east

DPR 523L (1/95) . *Required information



State of California @ Th. ..esources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial
NRHP Status Code
Other Listings :
Review Code Reviewer Date
Page of *Resource Name or #: (Assigned by recorder) Kuglis/Jennings Home

P1. Other Identifier:

*P2. Location: Not for Publication Unrestricted
*a. County Los Angeles and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.)
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad Date T :R : of of Sec ; B.M.
c. Address 260 San Antonio Dr City Long Beach Zip 90807
d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone mE/ mN

e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, decimal degrees, etc., as appropriate)
Tract #4493. NE 25 ft of Lot 7 and all of Lot 8.
*P3a.  Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries)
This c1919 two-story Classical Revival (Southern Colonial) single family home is of frame
construction and wood siding. The front veranda stretches across the width of the house,
supported by four 2-story Tuscan columns. The roof is wood-shingled and constructed with one
single unadorned gable. The veranda roof slants off the main roof. A pedimented front door,
complete with fanlight, is surrounded by symmetrically placed multi-paned wood sash windows.
The house was originally located at the NW corner of what is now Bixby and Pine (3801 Temple,
then Pine). At the time, the street was called Temple. Erected in 1919, it was moved in 1926
to its current location on San Antonio. Since 1926, the house’s porch was altered from the
original first-story semi-circular covered porch to the current configuration (n.d., but
probably at the time of the 1926

move) ; since then there have been
few alterations. The foundation
was repaired, a rear room
enlarged, and pool installed in
1961. In 1988 the den was
enlarged.

P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph reguired for buildings, structures, and objects.)

*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes
and codes) HP2

*P4. Resources Present: Building
Structure  Object  Site District
Element of District Other (Isolates, etc.)

PSb. Description of Photo: (view, date,
accession #) Google Maps 3/2015

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and Source:
@ Historic  Prehistoric Both
¢l919 (via tax assessor, city
directories and county map books)
*P7. Owner and Address:
Jay & Nancy Lentzner

260 San Antonioc Drive
Long Beach, CA 920807
*P8. Recorded by: (Name, affiliation, and address) Maureen Neeley, MLIS, Consultant Historian for HouStories,
247 Terminc Ave., Long Beach 90803
*P9. Date Recorded: 11/4/2015
*P10.Survey Type: (Describe) California Register nomination
*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.")
Simkins, Harold. Los Cerritos, Long Beach Cultural Heritage Survey. Long Beach Planning
Department, 1981.
*Attachments: NONE Location Map @ Continuation Sheet Building, Structure, and Object Record
Archaeological Record District Record  Linear Feature Record Milling Station Record Rock Art Record
Artifact Record Photograph Record Other (List):

DPR 523A (9/2013) *Required information




B This c1919 two-story Classical Revival
(Southern Colcnial) single family home
’-ﬁ%’ is of frame construction and wood
W Bsiding. The front veranda stretches
- jacross the width of the house, supported
by four 2-story Tuscan columns. The roof
is wood-shingled and constructed with
jone single unadorned gable. The veranda
lroof  slants off the main roof. A
pedimented front door, complete with
'fanlight, is surrounded by symmetrically
placed multi-paned wood sash windows.
iThe house was originally located at the
WNW corner of what is now Bixby and Pine
B (3801 Temple, then Pine). At the time,
he street was called Temple. Erected in
1919, it was moved in 1926 to its
current location on San Antonio. Since
1926, the house’'s porch was altered from the original first-story semi-circular
covered porch to the current configuration (n.d., but probably at the time of the 1926
move); since then there have been few alterations. The foundation was repaired, a rear
room enlarged, and pool installed in 1961. In 1988 the den was enlarged.

*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP2

*P4. Resources Present: Building

Structure Object Site District Element of District Other (Isolates, etc.)

P5b. Description of Photo: (view, date, accession#) Google Maps 3/2015

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and Source: Historic Prehistoric Both

cl919 (via tax assessor, city directories and county map books)

*P7. Owner and Address:

Jay & Nancy Lentzner
260 San Antonio Drive

Long Beach, CA 90807
*P8. Recorded by: (Name, affiliation, and address) Maureen Neeley, MLIS, Consultant Historian for
HouStories,

247 Termino Ave., Long Beach 90803

P9, Date Recorded: 11/4/2015

*P10. Survey Type: (Describe) California Register nomination



State of California The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #

PRIMARY i _
RECORD _ Trinomial

j NRHP Status Code
Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date
Page of *Resource Name or #: (Assigned by recorder) _Kuglis/Jennings Home
P1. Other Identifier:
*P2. Location: Not for Publication Unrestricted
*a, County Los Angeles and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. Attach a Location Map as
necessary.)
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad Date T ;R ; of ofSec ; B.M.
c. Address 260 San Antonio Dr City Long Beach Zip 90807
¢. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or lincar resources) Zone . mE/ mN
€. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, decimal degrees, etc., as appropriate)

Tract #4493. NE 25 ft of Lot 7 and all of Lot 8.

*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries)
PSa. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for buildings, structures, and objects.)



State of California & :«atural Resources Agency Primary#
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
Trinomial

CONTINUATION SHEET

Property Name:
Page of

More recent owners include Roscoe A. Jones (1985-87) and Dorothy'and Andrew Edwards (1987-
1%99) ; John and Andrea Robertson (1999-2006) and Jesse Rubalcava (2006 - 2012). The Edwards’
continued the tradition of hosting fundraisers and galas at the home for the Cancer League
and Assistance league into the 1990s. Andrew Edwards started the private audio-visual firm,
Extron, while living in the San Antonio house. Today, the Edwards live in Orange County
where, in addition to Extron, Andrew Edwards owns The Ranch, a steak house in Anaheim.

Locaticn - The Los Cerritos area of Long Beach holds some of the city’s oldest and most
important history, but because of its relative distance from downtown, the untamed river and
its penchant for flooding, along with oil exploration and transportation challenges, few of
the original residences are extant. This particular home, built at Bixby and Temple in 1919
and moved to 260 San Antonio in 1926, embodies the story of Los Cerritos and, to a greater
extent, the history of Long Beach’s early migration patterns, industries and social
structure.

Architecture and Architect - Additionally, very little has been altered both inside and
outside the home since the 1926 move. In reviewing the photo from the 1920 sale that was
featured in the Daily Telegram, it is obvious that the most obvious alternation of the front
porch to a two-story veranda has been the greatest change, and that this renovation probably
took place during the course of the 1926 move. Enlarging the den, repairing the foundation,
and enlarging the rear “family” room have not adversely affected the historic integrity of
the home.

Ed. Note: A thorcugh search of the various Builder and Contractor journals from 1916-1920
did not lead to an announcement or record of this home's construction. Therefore, the
architect and builder remzin unknown.

Kuglis grandchildren know the story of the loss of their grandfather’s ‘magnificent dream
home’ and may continue to provide some additional commentary.

DPR 523L (Rev. 1/1995)(Word 9/2013)




State of California @ N. 4l Resources Agency Primary#
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
Trinomial

CONTINUATION SHEET

Property Name:

Page of

B10 - Significance (cont’d)

The Jennings hailed from Kansas where Frank Jennings (b. 1890 KS) was a Wichita rancher. He
married Effie Choteau Wade (b. 1888 OK), an Osage tribe member from Oklahoma. She had a son,
Merle C. Wade (b. 1905, KS), by her first husband. The three Jennings moved into the Kuglis
house in 1920 which they purchased for $35,000. Frank and Merle continued to do some
ranching here in the Los Cerritos area, probably for the Bixbys, as their neighbor was H.S.
King, one of the Bixby head foremen. During the early 1920s, oil exploration exploded, as
did a number of guickly-erected derricks. The Los Cerritos 0il Field, in particular,
destroyed the new housing market in the area. The Jennings lot and house were no exception.
A nearby “fire and rampage of a gasser” (as described in a 1920’'s news clipping and photo)
at Bixby and Pacific convinced the Jennings to do two things: 1) remove their beautiful 2-
story home to drier and more stable ground; and 2) drill for oil on their own lot at Bixby
and Temple (now Pine). They struck with Jenning Well No. 1. They bought 1-1/2 lots on San
Antonio, moving the house in 1926 to this location where it stands today.

In 1931, Glenn E. Thomas Company purchased and lived in the home. Between the years of 1932
- 1935, six properties in this block alone were ‘sold for taxes,’ including the empty lot
next door to the house at 260 San Antonic. This house, however, was never in arrears. Thomas
is a well-documented and recognized leader in the Long Beach automobile industry. The Glenn
E. Thomas Studebaker Company was one of Long Beach’s most successful dealerships. Thomas
alsc built a lot for his used cars at 240 American Avenue (now Long Beach Boulevard). This
building is today a historic landmark {partially for its architect and architecture, the
importance of the automobile industry in Southern California, and also for housing the
unparalleled business, Acres of Books)

From 1936 to 1961, James and Dorothy Pawson owned and occupied the home. James (b. 1894 IL)
was a noted attorney with an office at 110 Pine (in the landmark Security Bank Building) .
James Pawson was also recognized in Walter Case’s Community Blue Book (1%48) for his
standing in Long Beach business. They had two children: Edward and Patricia. In 1941, Edward
married Belmont Heights resident, Ruth Baumann. A few years later, Patricia married Paul
Webb, and the elder Pawsons gifted their daughter and new son-in-law with the purchase of
the lot next door (Lot 9).

Over the next twenty years, from 1961 through the 1970s, the home and its occupants played
an integral role in Long Beach’s non-profit and arts society. Fundraisers for everything
from the Civic Light Opera, to the Symphony, from the Assistance League to St. Mary's
Hospital were held in this residence.

Dr. Wesley R. Lochausen (b. 1920, TX) purchased the house in 1961 from the Pawson estate. He
had been a Navy flight surgeon during the war and spent some time on a Navajo reservation as
a physician. He arrived in Long Beach in 1952. His dermatology offices in Long Beach were at
4301 Atlantic Avenue. He was a bachelor during his time in the house on San Antonio, and a
supporter of the arts, such as the Civic Light Opera. He hosted many fundraisers for this
group at the San Antonio home. A 1968 Long Beach Independent article notes that the house
was furnished in Louis XIV antigues and that he acquired the French bed of Fanny Brice.
Lochausen died in 1987 in Bexar County, Texas.

In 1977, the house passed intc the hands of Gordon and Joyce James, who continued the
precedent of using the home for arts and charity fundraisers. Gordon was a successful and
flamboyant haberdasher, owner of the popular Gordon’s Men’s Shoppe. Like Lochausen, James
was a huge supporter of the arts in Long Beach, helping to build the Terrace Theatre along
with Lars Hansen, Laura Killingsweorth and Harvey Waggoner. He served on boards such as the
LB Symphony, Long Beach Civic Light Opera, St. Mary's Hospital Foundation, Memorial Hospital
and the Cancer league, as well as the Public Corporation of the Arts.

DPR 523L (Rev. 1/1995)(Word 9/2013)




*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.")
Simkins, Harold. Los Cerritos, Long Beach Cultural Heritage Survey. Long Beach

Planning Departr . 1981,

*Attachments: NONE Location Map Continuation Sheet Building, Structure, and Object Record
Archaeological Record District Record Linear Feature Record Milling Station Record Rock Art Record

Artifact Record Photograph Record  Other (List):

DPR 523A (9/2013) *Required information



State of California B Ti.. .<esources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD

*Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) Kuglis/Jennings Home *NRHP Status Code 7
Page of

B1. Historic Name: Kuglis/Jennings Home B2. ‘Common Name: none
B3. OriginalUse: Single family home B4. Present Use: Single family home
*B5. Architectural Style: Late 19t" Early 20tk Century Revivals - Classical Revival

*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) Erected in 1919 on the NW corner .of Bixby Road
and what was then Temple Avenue (now called Pine Avenue); Moved in 1926 to 260 San Antonioc {current location). Front
veranda was altered from a single story semi-circular centered porch to the current configuration of two-story, 4
columned full veranda (n.d., but probably at the time of the 1926 move). 1961 - Foundation repairs, enlarged rear
rocom, and pool installation. 1988 - Den enlarged.

*B7. Moved? No Yes Unknown Date: 1926 Original Location: 3801 Pine
*B8. Related Features:

B9a. Architectt Unknown b. Builder: Unknown
*B10. Significance: Theme Early Residential Architecture Area Los Cerritos area of Long Beach

Period of Significance Early 20"c Development and Expansion, 1900-1920 Property Type SFR
Applicable Criteria 1, 2, 3 (Discussimportance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and

geographic scope. Also address integrity.) This single family home embodies early Los Cerritos development through
its association with early area families and industries, its location(s), and architect / architecture.

Early families embody local immigration patterns and industries

Slovenian immigrant Nicholas Kuglis (b. 1890 Komiza) fled Austria with his family in 1902 during the early
turmoil of the Austro-Hungary Empire’s impending collapse. Given that Komiza is on an island, he naturally
gravitated to the fishing and cannery business of San Pedro, Wilmington and San Diego, incorporating The Tuna
Exchange in 1914 and the Arrow Packing Co in 1918. He married Clara (b. __ Idaho) and he became a naturalized
citizen in 1916 and moved to Long Beach. In 1918, their daughter Marne Kuglis was born and Nicholas was General
Manager of the South Coast Canning Company. In 1919 he this custom Scuthern Colonial-style home erected on
Bixby and Temple (now Pine Ave.) In the ensuing year, his canning business fell off, as regulations resulted
in a 60% reduction in legal use of sardines for commercial use, and family lore says he went bankrupt. Kuglis
sold his brand new “magnificent dream house” to Frank and Effie Jennings. The Kuglis’ moved to 3723 Cedar,
where they raised their daughter. Both Clara and Nicholas died while at this address (Clara d. 193_ ; Nicholas
d. 1943). [cont’'d on 5231]

B11.  Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)  HP2
*B12. References: See attachment

B13. Remarks: In 2015, a moratorium was placed on demolitions in the Los Cerritos neighborhood. Threats
to eligible landmarks are of concern; The latest survey of area homes, “Los Cerritos, Long Beach Cultural
Heritage Survey,” was done in 1981. The current owners are
very interested in preserving and restoring this resource. (Sketch Map with north arrow required.)

*B14. Evaluator:
*Date of Evaluation:

(This space reserved for official comments.)

DPR 523B (9/2013) *Required information



State of California The Resources Agency Primary #

_DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRT#

_BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD

(This space reserved for official comments.)
(Sketch Map with north arrow required.)

*Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) _Kuglis/Jennings Home *NRHP Status Code 7

Page ____ of

B1. Historic Name: _Kuglis/Jennings Home B2. Common Name: none
B3. Original Use: _Single family

home  B4. PresentUse: ___Single family home —

*BS. Architectural Style: _Late 192 Early 201;E Century Revivals - Classical Reviwval

*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) Erected in 1919 on the NW corner of Bixby

Road and what was then Temple Avenue (now called Pine Avenue)}; Moved in 1926 to 260 San Antonio (current
location). Front veranda was altered from a single story semi-circular centered porch to the current
configuration of two-story, 4 columned full veranda (n.d., but probably at the time of the 1926 move). 1961
- Foundation repairs, enlarged rear room, and pool installation. 1988 - Den enlarged.

*B7. Moved? No Yes Unknown Date: 1926 Original Location:_3801 Pine

*B8. Related Features:

BYa. Architect: _Unknown b. Builder: Unknown

*B10. Significance: Theme Early Residential Architecture Area Los Cerritos area of Long
Beach

h
Period of Significance _Farly 20 Development and Expansion, 1900-1920 Property Type _SFR
Applicable Criterin 1, 2, 3 (Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic

scope. Also address integrity.) This single family home embodies early Los Cerritos development through its
association with early area families and industries, its location(s), and architect / architecture.

Early families embody local immigration patterns and industries

Slovenian immigrant Nicholas Kuglis (b. 1890 Komiza) fled Austria with his family in 1902 during the
early turmoil of the Austro-Hungary Empire’s impending collapse. Given that Komiza is on an island, he
naturally gravitated to the fishing and cannery business of San Pedro, Wilmington and San Diego,
incorporating The Tuna Exchange in 1914 and the Arrow Packing Co in 1918. He married Clara (b. o
Idaho) and he became a naturalized citizen in 1916 and moved to Long Beach. In 1918, their daughter
Marne Kuglis was born and Nicholas was General Manager of the South Coast Canning Company. In 1919 he
this custom Southern Colonial-style home erected on Bixby and Temple (now Pine Ave.) In the ensuing
year, his canning business fell off, as reqgulations resulted in a 60% reduction in legal use of
sardines for commercial use, and family lore says he went bankrupt. Kuglis sold his brand new
"magnificent dream house” to Frank and Effie Jennings. The Kuglis’ moved to 3723 Cedar, where they
raised their daughter. Both Clara and Nicholas died while at this address (Clara d. 193 : Nicholas d.
1943). [cont’d on 5231]



Bi11. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) _HP2

*Bi2. References: See attachment

B13. Remarks: In 2015, a moratorium was placed on demolitions in the Los Cerritos
neighborhood. Threats to eligible landmarks are of concern; The latest survey of area homes,
“Los Cerritos, Long Beach Cultural Heritage Survey,” was done in 1981. The current owners are
very interested in preserving and restoring this resource.

*Bi4. Evaluator:

*Date of Evaluation:

DPR 523B (9/2013) *Required information
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